
 
 
  

VILLAGE OF DECATUR 
PARKS & RECREATION 

COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

      

Monday      
September 19, 
2022 



 

 
 

 
 

VILLAGE OF DECATUR 
Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting 
Monday, September 19, 2022 – 3:00PM 
Village Hall – 114 N. Phelps Street, Decatur, MI 49045 

4:30 PM Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting (Action to be taken by PRC on the following agenda items) 
Note:  Please be courteous and turn cell phones off during the meeting. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL (Excused Absences if Any) 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

 
5A.1 – Request approval of agenda for Monday, September 19, 2022 
5A.2 – Request approval of meeting minutes for Friday, August 19, 2022 
 

6. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE COUNCIL – PRESENTATIONS & GUESTS 
 
7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
7A.1- Update regarding Splash Pad designs from Abonmarche 
  

8. NEW BUSINESS 
 
8A.1 – Request to adopt bylaws 
8A.2 – Request to approve priorities list  
8A.3 – Request to review current FY 23 Budget 

 
9. PUBLIC COMMENTS- SECOND OPPORTUNITY 
 
10. PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
 
11. ADJOURNMENT 

 
PLEASE NOTE 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: 
In addition to addressing the PRC during public hearings and under “Public Comment,” members of the audience 
may address the PRC. Please limit your comments to three minutes or less per item. Please step up to the Podium 
and state your name and address. 
 

The proposed process for items listed under agenda items above shall be as follows: 
 

1. Announcement of the agenda item by the Chairperson. 



 

 
 

2. Verbal report provided by staff. 
3. The Chairperson asks PRC members if they have any questions for staff to clarify the staff report. 
4. Motion is made by a PRC member and seconded by another PRC member. 
5. The Chair then calls on PRC members to discuss the motion if PRC members wish to discuss. 
6. Chair calls for a vote on the item after discussion has occurred. 



1 | P a g e  
 

Village of Decatur 
Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting Minutes  

Friday, August 19, 2022, at 3:00 P.M  
Village Hall, 114 N. Phelps Street  

Decatur, MI 49045 

I. Call to Order 

Village Manager, Christopher Tapper called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

II. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

III. Roll Call 
 
Jessica Pelfrey, Janice Benson, Charlene Jackson, Nicky Fassett, Kande 
Hawks, Shantel Pentland, Administrative Assistant, Megan Duncan 
Clerk/Treasurer, Business Development Specialist, Katie Vanderhulst. 
 

IV. Public Comment 
 
None 
 

V. Introductions 
 
Members of the new committee introduce themselves.  
 

VI. Presentations & Guest 
 
Katie Vanderhulst, Abonmarche was in attendance to present several plans 
suggested by the steering committee. Estimate one considering restrooms at 
Red Woolfe Park, to bring the facility up to ADA standards. Estimate two 
considers the capital improvement of construction of a Splash Pad at Red 
Woolfe Park. 
 
A general discussion ensued regarding both projects. Committee members 
offered several suggestions regarding proposed improvements. Topics 
included; landscaping improvements, tree removal, drainage, concessions 
availability, replacement of playground equipment. Questions also ensued 
about grants available.  
 
 
 
 



2 | P a g e  
 

VII. Public Hearing 

None 

VIII. Unfinished Business – Splash Pad  
 
Vanderhulst updated the committee regarding site plan design with the 
potential Splash Pad. Vanderhulst discuss options provided by Vortex, a 
company who specializes in design and construction of Splash Pads. The 
committee reviewed timelines for Recreation Passport Grants. The deadline for 
projects for development of public recreation facilities is April 1, 2023. 
Additional grant opportunities include; Land and Water Conservation Fund, 
Natural Resources Trust Fund. 
 

IX. New Business 

Motion by Jackson, with support from Benson to establish the following 
meeting schedule will be the third Monday of the month at 4:30 at Village Hall, 
114 N Phelps Street, Decatur, MI 49045, motion approved. 
 
Motion by Jackson, with support from Hawks to appoint Jessica Pelfrey as 
Chairperson of the Parks and Recreation Committee, motion approved. 
 

X. Members Comments 

Village Manager Tapper asked the Committee to review the following priorities 
list. Staff has identified the following; sidewalks, community engagement, 
ranking parks improvement priorities. A general discussion ensued regarding 
the priorities. Members to review the outline and continue the discussion at the 
next meeting. 

XI. Adjournment 
 
Jackson offered a motion with support from Duncan to adjourn the meeting at 
4:22 p.m., motion approved. 
 
 
Minutes submitted by: Shantel Pentland, Administrative Assistant 

 

 

 



  
 

Village of Decatur 
114 N Phelps Street 
Decatur, MI 49045 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Parks & Recreation Committee 
FROM:  Christopher Tapper, Village Manager 
DATE:   September 19, 2022  
REVIEWED BY: N/A  
 
SUBJECT: Update from Katie Vanderhulst, Abonmarche 
 
Action Requested: 
It is requested that the Parks & Recreation Committee receive an update from Katie Vanderhulst. 

Background: 
At the Committee meeting August 2022, the Committee reviewed proposals regarding Red Woolfe 
Park. Katie will provide a status report from the discussion at the prior meeting.  

  

Attachments: 
Red Woolfe Park 



Product No. Product Name Description QTY

0303 ROOSTER TAIL (EM) 2

0519 Spray Loop (SW, PC) 2

0611 BOLLARD ACTIVATOR N
°3(SW, PC)

1

1004 PLAYSAFE DRAIN No.4 1

7217 SNAIL Nº4 (SW,PC) 1

7230 LUNA No.1 (SW, PC) 1

7235 LUNA CANNON No.1 (SW, 
PC)

2

7238 HELIO No.3 (SW, PC) 1

7242 TWINSPLASH (SW,PC) 1

7512 JET STREAM NO.1 (EM) 4

7518 Side Winder (EM) 2

7792 BUTTERFLY No.1 (SW,PC) 1

Custom WDS See Description Below 1

19030 Freight Fee Freight Fee 1

19020 Embed Freight Fee Embed Freight Fee 1

18020 Packaging Fee Packaging Fee 1

14010 Installation Fees Installation Fees 1

INSTALLATION KIT 
#SAFESWAP NO1

4

INSTALLATION KIT # 
(LARGE SW) SURFACE 
MOUNT

1

M12 CONNECTION WIRE, 
5-PIN, STRAIGHT 
CONNECTOR_75M 
LG_22AWG

1

INSTALLATION KIT 
#SAFESWAP NO7 
(MEDIUM SW) SURFACE 
MOUNT

1

INSTALLATION KIT 
#SAFESWAP NO2

8

Account Name: Village of Decatur Created Date: 8/24/2022 7:15 PM

Project Name: Village of Decatur Quote Number: QUO-15774-W6R9C2

Project ID: 38626 Quote Name: Village of Decatur VA

Bill To Name: Village of Decatur

Bill To Address: 114 N. Phelps Decatur
Decatur, MI 49045
United States

Contact Name: Tony McGhee

Phone: (269) 927-2295 ext. 130

Email: tmcghee@abonmarche.com

Angie Monroe

Email: amonroe@vortex-intl.com

Prepared By:

Incoterm:

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, Corporate Headquarters
7800 Trans Canada, Pointe-Claire, Québec, Canada, H9R 1C6
Tel: +1-514-694-3868 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, USA Office
3500 South Dupont Highway, Suite EP-101, Dover, DE 19901
Tel: +1 (704) 280-09271 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

QUOTE



INSTALLATION KIT FOR 
GROUND EQUIPEMENT

24

TOOL KIT #0 : 1

TOOL KIT #1 :SECURITY 
BITS (ALL)

1

TOOL KIT #67: 
INSTALLATION KITFOR 
SPRAY LOOP

1

TOOL KIT #28:RIV-
VOZZLE TOOL

1

TOOL KIT #123: POD 
SPRAY KEY

1

TOOL KIT #3 : 2 PIN KEY 1

Additional Information

Provided by Vortex USA Certified Installers: 
• Set all safe-swap anchors, ground sprays, features, and 
        Water Management to elevation. 
• Bolt and flow adjustments for all features & elevation.
• Pipe all features with schedule 80 PVC or PEX to water/sewer (final hook ups by GC)
• Wire from activation bollards to controller
• Startup training for staff, once complete
        Provided by General Contractor/City: 
• Site restoration. Topsoil and seed disturbed areas.
• All utilities brought to pad by and ALL final connections 
        made by GC/City
• Need 2" dedicated water feed line brought to pad after 
        city provided back flow preventer and/or water meter is 
        installed to have 55psi for system to function properly.
• Electricity brought to pad - Final connections made by GC
• 6" schedule 35 or 40 sewer drain line brought to pad.
• Site excavation- remove 16"-18" from finish grade
• ALL Permits - ALL Inspections by GC/City
• City's Electrician to install bonding loop to features, as 
        shown in construction documents and on concrete Rebar.  
        (Pull permit and call for inspection)
• Provide a 95% compacted sand base to leave a 6" reveal 
        for concrete pad
• 6” Concrete for splashpad area - 2% slope to drain
o 3/8 Rebar – 18” on center – Bonded
• 4” Concrete spray-free zone
o Minimum 5’ buffer zone with wire mesh pitched slope to 
        drain and all poured together with 6” spray zone 

Custom Description

ECCC 2.0 Water Distribution System Serial Number: 38626D2208R00  ECCC Cabinet Command Center - Flow-Through Double 2" Inlet With 
Pressure Regulator; Backflow Preventer Installed Controller Installed in Equipment 0 Additional Output 1 Activation Device  8x 1" PVC Solenoid 
Valve Line w/ Ball-Valve 7x 1" PVC Solenoid Valve Line w/ Ball-Valve 1x MaestroPRO, Splashpad, 24 out / 12 in 120V 1x AT&T LTE Cell Module

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, Corporate Headquarters
7800 Trans Canada, Pointe-Claire, Québec, Canada, H9R 1C6
Tel: +1-514-694-3868 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, USA Office
3500 South Dupont Highway, Suite EP-101, Dover, DE 19901
Tel: +1 (704) 280-09271 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

QUOTE



Payment Terms

The following terms and conditions (the "Terms and Conditions") form part of the Purchase Contract (the "Purchase Contract) between yourself 
(the "Customer, and Vortex Aquatic Structures International and/or Vortex USA Inc. ("Vortex"). The Customer's acceptance and understanding 
of these Terms and Conditions and all other supporting documentation provided as part of this package is evidenced by signing of the Purchase 
Contract. 

Purchase Contract Terms & Conditions of Sales

Terms & Conditions

Products Payment Terms: Product $100K-$250K: 30% deposit at PO, 50% @Ship, 20% Net 45

Services Payment Terms: Progressive Payments, NET 30

Total Summary

Customer Signature:
Products: 94,568.22

Services: 72,500.00

Transport: 3,970.00

Subtotal: 171,038.22

Total: 171,038.22

Currency: US DollarEnquire about our cooperative purchasing programs.
Thank you for doing business with us!
Pricing is valid for a period of 45 days. 

Freight Charges

Please note: freight charge is an estimate and is subject to change without notice. Vortex reserves the right to adjust the freight charge quoted 
above. Should embed equipment be required ahead of scheduled delivery date, additional freight charges will apply.

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, Corporate Headquarters
7800 Trans Canada, Pointe-Claire, Québec, Canada, H9R 1C6
Tel: +1-514-694-3868 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, USA Office
3500 South Dupont Highway, Suite EP-101, Dover, DE 19901
Tel: +1 (704) 280-09271 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

QUOTE



Service & Support

Vortex’ standard lead times are up to 3-4 weeks for embeds, up to 6-8 weeks for Play Products, up to 10 weeks for Water Recirculation 
Equipment, up to 16 weeks for Elevations and up to 16 weeks for Waterslides. The lead times areas contingent upon receipt of signed Purchase 
Contract, approved drawings, and all applicable color selections. Expected timing for order completion and shipment will be communicated to 
the Customer at the time the Purchase Contract is signed by the Customer and acknowledged by Vortex. 

Vortex reserves the right to refuse a Customer’s delivery date change request if a delivery date confirmation has been previously 
confirmed/communicated to the Customer. All fees related to the delivery will be the sole responsibility of the Customer and will be borne by 
them. Storage fees will be charged if the Customer is unable or unwilling to receive the product as per the dates communicated by Vortex. The 
storage fees are payable before release of the shipment. 

All products will be packaged to mitigate damage during shipment. All shipments must be inspected upon delivery and any damage, errors or 
omissions must be reported to Vortex at support@vortex-intl.com and the transport company within 24 hours of receipt of goods. Vortex 
reserves the right to amend and modify the transportation costs based on the Customer’s request. 

Lead Times & Logistics

Unless otherwise specified in the Purchase Contract, payment by the Customer of the purchase price specified in the Purchase Contract (with 
all applicable taxes, the '·Purchase Price") shall be on the following terms: 100% of the Purchase Price to be paid prior to Vortex commencing 
production on the Customer's order. Any overdue balances are subject to interest charges of 1.5% per month.

Unless otherwise specifically stated, all sales taxes or any other personal property taxes, use taxes, duties, excises, levies or tariffs imposed by 
any government authority and incurred by Vortex through performance of the Purchase Contract will be the Customer's responsibility. Without 
limiting the generality foregoing, applicable taxes will be applied to all taxable goods arid services included in the Purchase Contract as 
amended from time to time. Customers are advised to consult with their financial and tax advisors to obtain further information regarding 
taxes applicable to their purchase.

Vortex maintains a no return policy and asks all Customers to determine feature and color selection carefully. If a Customer cancels an order 
after production has commenced, Vortex reserves the right to charge (and the Customer agrees to pay) a 40% re-stocking fee. 

 
Cheque, Wire Transfer, Irrevocable Letter of Credit or Credit Card (note: an administrative fee of 3.5% may apply to payments made via 
Credit Card) are considered acceptable payment methods. 

 
Except where title to the products contained in the Customer's order is explicitly transferred by Vortex to the Customer and the Purchase 
Price is paid in full, title to and right to possession of such products shall remain with Vortex until the Purchase Price and all sums due or 
become due from the Customer are fully paid. 

 
Should the goods comprising the Customer's order be connected to the ground or real property or buildings because of foundations or 
mechanical parts, then this connection is to be considered as transitory in nature until payment in full of the Purchase Price. 

 
Unless otherwise agreed, projects where Vortex is supplying goods without installation, the risk of loss of the goods shall pass to the 
Customer when the goods are delivered to the Customer or its agent or to a carrier for delivery to the Customer or its agent, whichever 
event shall first occur. In the event of where Vortex is suppling and installing goods, risk of loss of the goods shall pass to the Customer 
upon completion of the project. 

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, Corporate Headquarters
7800 Trans Canada, Pointe-Claire, Québec, Canada, H9R 1C6
Tel: +1-514-694-3868 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, USA Office
3500 South Dupont Highway, Suite EP-101, Dover, DE 19901
Tel: +1 (704) 280-09271 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

QUOTE



The Customer has reviewed local codes and standards and has accepted the design and product specifications, including custom-designed 
features by signing the Purchase Contract. For orders including water recirculating equipment, the Customer is responsible for ensuring the 
accepted system meets local standards and codes and that all appropriate approvals are obtained, unless otherwise noted. Any design changes 
requested after signing the Purchase Contract will be subject to additional fees. 

The Customer agrees to pay on demand all expenses reasonably incurred by Vortex in efforts to collect the amounts owing under the Purchase 
Contract. The Customer shall pay reasonable legal costs (fees and disbursements), including fees incurred in both trial and appellate courts or 
fees incurred without suit and all court costs. 

Confidentiality: The design details and specifications of the products included in the Customer's order, including without limitation, fabrication 
drawings, samples, sketches, photographs, foundation drawings, approval drawings, shipping lists, manuals and any other technical details 
(collectively, the "Confidential Information"} supplied are the property of Vortex and are confidential. The Customer shall not, without prior 
written consent of Vortex, use the Confidential Information except in connection with the installation and operation of the goods supplied or 
disclose such Confidential Information to third parties unless compelled by law. 

Limitation of Liability: The aggregate liability of Vortex, its affiliates, and their respective employees, directors, officers, agents and contractors 
for any claim, whether in contract, tort (including negligence) or otherwise, for any loss or damage arising out of, connected with, or resulting 
from the manufacture, sale, delivery, installation, resale, repair, replacement or use of any product will in no case exceed the actual portion of 
the Purchase Price paid by the Customer for the Purchase Contract. In no event will the Vortex be liable for special, indirect, or consequential 
damages. The limitation of liability contained herein shall survive the termination or expiration of the Purchase Contract. 

Vortex is not responsible for any damages to the Customer’s environment and or landscaping as a result of its products. All modifications and 
alterations made to Vortex’s products will automatically void and null all warranties. Vortex may refuse to accept any order for any reason 
without incurring any liability from the Customer. No Change to this Agreement will be enforceable unless the Customer has a signed a Vortex 
Change Order request.

Pricing is valid for a period of 45 days. 

General Terms & Conditions

Unless otherwise specified, the following is excluded from Vortex’ purchase agreement price and responsibility: project management, project 
coordination, loading and unloading, onsite storage, installation services, permits and permit fees, local, state and or health department codes 
and approvals, OHSA documentation, onsite electrical work, electrical connections, onsite plumbing work and plumbing connections, bonding 
payment, geotechnical survey work, excavation & removal of materials, concrete surfacing, slab design and concrete footings.

Exclusions

Digital versions of operations and maintenance manuals will be provided at the later of either the delivery of the products or completion of the 
project installation. Vortex is not responsible for coordination the installation project unless otherwise specified in the Contract. The Customer 
is responsible for coordinating installation schedules with Vortex to ensure that the site is ready for Vortex’ products and services. Vortex 
reserves the right to charge the Customer and the Customer agrees to pay for any additional time or idle time on site and all additional 
expenses incurred as a result of the site not being ready for the planned services.

Vortex reserves the right to cancel supervision, installation start-up and commissioning services if Vortex deems the site unsafe or not ready. 
The Customer is responsible for ensuring a safe working environment for any Vortex or contracted service technicians. Vortex reserves the 
right to bill the Customer for (and the Customer agrees to pay) any additional time on site as well as any additional expenses incurred as a 
result of waiting to rectify an unsafe work condition. 

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, Corporate Headquarters
7800 Trans Canada, Pointe-Claire, Québec, Canada, H9R 1C6
Tel: +1-514-694-3868 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, USA Office
3500 South Dupont Highway, Suite EP-101, Dover, DE 19901
Tel: +1 (704) 280-09271 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

QUOTE



Vortex Aquatic Structures International, Corporate Headquarters
7800 Trans Canada, Pointe-Claire, Québec, Canada, H9R 1C6
Tel: +1-514-694-3868 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, USA Office
3500 South Dupont Highway, Suite EP-101, Dover, DE 19901
Tel: +1 (704) 280-09271 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

QUOTE



Construction Agreement
The Owner and the Contractor agree as follows:

Engagement of the Contractor by Owner

Owner hereby contracts with the Contractor to provide the labor, services, and/or materials to perform the construction work described in the 
statement of work appended hereto and made a part hereof by reference, upon that certain real property and more commonly known as 
(hereinafter ''Subject Property''), as more particularly set forth in hereof.

Scope of Work

Contractor will furnish all specifications, labor, equipment, materials, sales taxes, transportation, supervision, coordination, and communication 
in a workmanlike manner for the work described in the statement of work attached hereto, which is made a part hereof by reference.

Contract, Drawings and Specifications

The work upon the Subject Property will be in accordance with drawings and specifications provided by Contractor, which drawings and 
specifications are hereby made a part of this Agreement. This Agreement and the drawings hereby are intended to supplement each other. In 
case of conflict, however, the statement of work shall control the drawings, and the provisions of this Construction Agreement shall control 
both.

Time for Commencement Work

Owner will have the jobsite ready for commencement of the work to be performed by the Contractor specified herein above and will give 
Contractor written notice to commence work. Contractor will commence work after such notice or within of receipt of all necessary 
governmental approvals and permits, whichever date shall last occur.

Guarantees of Timely Completion
Time is of the essence in the Contractor’s performance of the Work and is a basic consideration of this Agreement. Accordingly, Contractor 
guarantees that the following event (the ''Guaranteed Events'') shall occur no later than the date specified (the ''Guaranteed Completion 
Dates''), except if Contractor can show that a Force Majeure Event has occurred as set forth in Section 6 herein.

Force Majeure Event
Owner and Contractor are aware of the ongoing pandemic known as COVID-19, and acknowledge that delays, additional costs, or both may 
occur as a result and are not the responsibility of the Contractor.  If Constructor is delayed at any time in the commencement or progress of the 
Work, or if Contractor’s work is made more costly, by any cause or condition arising directly or indirectly from COVID-19, Contractor shall be 
entitled to an equitable adjustment of the Contract Time and Contract Sum.  Such causes may include but are not limited to labor shortages or 
unavailability of workers, supply chain disruption, inability of personnel to work due to federal, state or local executive orders, subcontractor 
delays or increased costs, unusual delays in deliveries, delayed inspections or permit approvals, material or equipment cost increases or delays, 
import delays, and other similar causes beyond Contractor’s reasonable control.

Neither Party shall be considered to be in default in performance of any obligation hereunder if failure of performance shall be due to a 
Force Majeure Event. For the purposes of this Agreement, the term, ''Force Majeure Event'', shall mean any cause beyond the control of 
the Party affected, including, but not limited to, flood, earthquake, storm, fire, lightning, epidemic, war, riot, civil disturbance, labor 
disturbance (except as excluded herein), sabotage, other ''Acts of God'', and restraint by court order or public authority, which by 
exercise of due foresight such Party could not reasonably have been expected to avoid, and which by exercise of due diligence it is 
unable to overcome. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the term Force Majeure Event shall not be deemed to include (a) any 
labor disturbance affecting either  Contractor or any Subcontractor (except Subcontractors that have been selected by Owner), to the 
extent that such labor disturbance involves direct employees of Contractor or any Subcontractor who are performing Work on the 
Project, except for a national strike in the United States, (b) the climate for the geographic area of the Project, (c) the occurrence of any 
manpower or material shortages or (d) any delay, default or failure (direct or indirect) in obtaining materials, or any Subcontractor or 
worker performing any Work or any other delay, default or failure (financial or otherwise) of a Subcontractor, vendor or supplier. 
Neither Party shall, however, be relieved of liability for failure of performance if such failure is due to causes arising out of its own acts, 
omissions or negligence or to removable or remediable causes that it fails to remove or remedy with reasonable dispatch. The Party 
claiming a Force Majeure Event shall give the other Party prompt written notice of the Force Majeure Event.

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, Corporate Headquarters
7800 Trans Canada, Pointe-Claire, Québec, Canada, H9R 1C6
Tel: +1-514-694-3868 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, USA Office
3500 South Dupont Highway, Suite EP-101, Dover, DE 19901
Tel: +1 (704) 280-09271 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

QUOTE



Building Permits, Charges and Exactions

Owner will provide and pay for all necessary building permits. Contractor shall not be responsible for any bonds, assessments, hookup charges, 
fees, taxes for any utilities, public agencies, or governments other than herein provided.

Labor and Material

Contractor shall pay all valid charges for labor and material incurred by Contractor and used in the work hereinabove specified.

Contract Price and Payment Thereof

For all services performed by Contractor on this Project, the Owner will pay Contractor the total price in accordance with the schedule of value 
appended hereto in the proposal.

No Payment in the Event of Default

Owner shall have no obligation to make any payment to Contractor at any time when one of the reasons exist which allow Owner to terminate 
the Contract for cause as provided in Section ‘’Termination for Default by Contractor’’ of this Agreement.

Construction Financing

If payment of the contract price is to be made by Owner through a construction lender, Owner hereby represents, affirms, and covenants that 
the construction loan fund is sufficient to pay the contract price and that Owner shall take all acts necessary to expedite timely payment from 
the construction lender. Owner hereby irrevocably authorizes the construction lender to make payment of the contract price directly to The 
Contractor.

Extra Work & Deviations from Original Contract Work

Should Owner, construction lender if any, or any public or governmental agency or inspector direct any deletion from, modification of, or 
addition to the work as hereinabove specified, the costs of such deletion(s), modification(s), or addition(s) shall be added to or deducted from 
the contract price, as hereinabove defined, as the circumstances dictate. Any and all deletions from, modifications of, or additions to the scope 
of work prescribed by this Construction Agreement together with the adjustment to contract price shall be made or otherwise memorialized in a 
writing signed by Owner and Contractor prior to any obligation in kind or character on the part of the Contractor to recognize, honor, or adhere 
to such changes.

Allowances

If the contract price, as hereinabove defined, includes allowances of any kind, and the cost of performing the work covered by an allowance is 
either greater or less than the allowance, then this Construction Agreement shall be increased or decreased accordingly. Unless otherwise 
requested by Owner in writing, Contractor shall use its judgment in accomplishing work covered by an allowance. If Owner requests that work 
covered by an allowance be accomplished by the Contractor in such a way that the cost will exceed the allowance, Contractor will be obligated 
to comply with Owner's request only upon payment by Owner of the additional costs in advance.

Insurance, Bonds and Indemnity

Contractor shall maintain at its cost the following minimum insurance and coverage throughout the term of the Agreement:
1. Comprehensive General Liability or Commercial General Liability: The limits of the liability shall not be less than:
a. Comprehensive General Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit bodily/property damage per occurrence or;
b. Commercial General Liability: Each occurrence limit $1,000,000; Personal & Advertising injury limit $1,000,000; Products 
completed operations aggregate limit $1,000,000; General aggregate limit $2,000,000
2. Workers' Compensation: Liability limits to cover statutory requirements and maintain limits of employer’s liability; bodily injury by 
accident $1,000,000 each accident; injury by disease $1,000,000 policy limit; bodily injury by disease $1,000,000 each employee.
3. Commercial Auto Coverage: Auto liability limits of $1,000,000 each accident combined bodily injury and property damage 
liability insurance, including but not limited to, owned autos, hired or non-hired autos.

Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Owner from any and all claims, loss, or expense of every kind whatsoever which 
may arise from Contractor’s negligent acts or omissions or breach of its obligations hereunder.

If required by the Owner, the Contractor shall maintain builder’s risk property insurance respecting the Property in an amount 
equal to the full insurable value thereof and the risk of casualty loss or damage to the Property shall be borne by Contractor.

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, Corporate Headquarters
7800 Trans Canada, Pointe-Claire, Québec, Canada, H9R 1C6
Tel: +1-514-694-3868 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, USA Office
3500 South Dupont Highway, Suite EP-101, Dover, DE 19901
Tel: +1 (704) 280-09271 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

QUOTE



Performance/Payment Bond

If required by the Owner, a Performance Bond and a Payment Bond in a form satisfactory to the Owner shall be furnished in the full amount of 
the price of the Contract Agreement as set forth herein. If the Owner requires such Bonds after this Agreement, the cost thereof shall be paid 
by Owner as a change to the Contract Agreement, otherwise it shall be included in the Contract Agreement.

Warranties

Contractor warrants, that for a period of one (1) year commencing on the earlier of Final Completion of all the Work (''Primary Warranty 
Period''), under this Agreement be, in a good and workmanlike manner, and in strict conformity with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement, the Design Documents, all applicable Permits, all applicable Laws, and prudent construction practices; and (ii) all materials shall be 
free of defects and deficiencies, free from any encumbrances or liens and shall be in strict conformity with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement.

Remedy

If the warranty set forth in Section 16 is breached within the Primary Warranty Period, Contractor shall correct the defective workmanship 
and/or material, as the case may be, on an expedited basis, at no cost to Owner and at Contractor's sole cost. Owner shall provide Contractor 
with full and free access to the work sites to perform its warranty obligations under this Agreement.

Termination for Convenience by Owner

If Owner fails to perform any material terms of this Agreement and/or pay to Contractor any undisputed payment as required hereunder and 
such failure continues for thirty (30) Days after Notice has been given to Owner by Contractor, the Contractor may terminate this Agreement 
immediately. In the event of such a termination by Contractor. The Contractor   may institute legal proceedings to recover all costs incurred 
until the date of termination and any and all damages as permitted by law. Owner acknowledges that Contractor would suffer damages 
including the loss of profit which Contractor would otherwise have realized upon full performance of this Construction Agreement. It is 
therefore agreed that in such event Owner will pay Contractor as liquidated damages a sum equal to thirty percent (30%) of the contract price 
as herein-above defined.

Termination for Default by Owner

 The Owner may terminate this Agreement for the Contractor’s default by delivering written notice in advance of termination. The Contractor 
shall be in default under this Agreement upon the occurrence of any of the following events (''Contractor Events of Default''):

(a)    Failure by Contractor to perform fully any material provision of this Agreement, including, without limitation, 
Contractor’s failure to supply sufficient qualified personnel or to perform the Work in accordance with the 
Guaranteed Completion Dates.

(b)    Contractor contravenes any applicable Law, applicable Permit, ordinance, ruling, regulation or orders of any 
governmental authority or court which materially impacts the ability of Contractor to perform the Work in 
accordance with this Agreement.

(c)    Contractor becomes insolvent, or generally does not pay its debts as they become due, or admits in writing its 
inability to pay its debts, or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors or insolvency, receivership, 
reorganization or bankruptcy proceedings are commenced by Contractor; and

(d)    Insolvency, receivership, reorganization or bankruptcy proceedings are commenced against Contractor, and such 
proceedings are not terminated, stayed or dismissed within sixty (60) Days after the commencement thereof.

Owner shall give Notice of any Contractor Events of Default to Contractor. If (A) any of the defaults described in clauses
(a) and (b) in Section 19 is not cured within thirty (30) Days, (B) corrective action is not commenced within ten (10) Days of receipt 
of Notice from Owner with respect to nonmonetary defaults which cannot be cured within thirty (30) Days, and such corrective 
action completed within a reasonable period of time to be mutually agreed upon by Owner and Contractor within ten (10) 
Business Days after receipt of Notice from Owner or, absent such mutual agreement, completed within the time period proposed 
by Owner, or (C) upon the occurrence of a default described in clause (d) or (e), then Owner may terminate this Agreement and 
take possession of all equipment, materials and supplies and complete the Work as Owner deems expedient. The total cost of 
completing the Work shall be charged to Contractor. Contractor shall pay to Owner the total cost to complete the Work within 
sixty (60) Days following receipt of Owner’s demand for such payment. The remedies set forth in this section shall not be exclusive 
and Owner shall have the right to pursue any other remedies under this Agreement or at law or in equity. Such termination shall 
not affect Contractor’s representations or warranties.

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, Corporate Headquarters
7800 Trans Canada, Pointe-Claire, Québec, Canada, H9R 1C6
Tel: +1-514-694-3868 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, USA Office
3500 South Dupont Highway, Suite EP-101, Dover, DE 19901
Tel: +1 (704) 280-09271 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

QUOTE



 Termination for Default by Contractor

If Owner fails to perform any material terms of this Agreement and/or pay to Contractor any undisputed payment as required hereunder and 
such failure continues for thirty (30) Days after Notice has been given to Owner by Contractor, the Contractor may terminate this Agreement 
immediately. In the event of such a termination by Contractor. The Contractor   may institute legal proceedings to recover all costs incurred 
until the date of termination and any and all damages as permitted by law. Owner acknowledges that Contractor would suffer damages 
including the loss of profit which Contractor would otherwise have realized upon full performance of this Construction Agreement. It is 
therefore agreed that in such event Owner will pay Contractor as liquidated damages a sum equal to thirty percent (30%) of the contract price 
as herein-above defined.

Delay

Contractor shall be not be liable to Owner or any person, corporation, partnership, or other legal entity claiming by, though, or under Owner 
for any delays in completion of this Construction Agreement regardless of the cause, source, or nature of such delay.

If Contractor should encounter concealed conditions that were not reasonably anticipated by Contractor at the time of execution of this 
Construction Agreement, Contractor shall bring the existence and nature of such concealed conditions to the attention of Owner. If such 
concealed conditions prevent, preclude, or obstruct performance by Contractor of the work herein prescribed, or burden the scope of work 
as herein defined by requiring additional work by Contractor to address, correct, and/or rectify such concealed defects, then the scope of 
work and contract price as hereinabove defined shall be adjusted in accordance with account for all courses of action necessary to address, 
correct, and/or rectify such concealed conditions.

Concealed Conditions

Owner hereby warrants that all required inspections have been performed to ascertain the existence of or presence upon the Subject 
Property of any hazardous conditions or materials, including without limitation asbestos and radon gas, and Owner further hereby agrees to 
indemnify and hold Contractor harmless from any and all liability for the same.

Hazardous Conditions and  Materials

Contractor shall be obligated to, and Owner shall have the benefit of, all warranties provided by law.

 Additional Warranties Provided by Law

Clean Up

It shall be Contractors responsibility at regular and appropriate intervals as well as upon completion of the work herein prescribed to clean up 
the jobsite as described in the scope of work.

 Attorney’s Fees

In the event that any proceedings of a judicial or quasi-judicial nature are instituted by any party to this Construction Agreement to secure 
performance of any of the obligations herein set forth, the prevailing party in such a proceeding shall be entitled to recover, in addition to all 
other relief provided by law, its reasonable attorney's fees.

This Construction Agreement shall in all respects be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of the State. Should any provision 
of this Construction Agreement become void or voidable by decision of any court or act of any legislative or quasi---legislative body or entity, 
then such provision shall be regarded as automatically amended to comply with such decision or act in a manner most favorable to Contractor

Governing Law

This Construction Agreement comprises the sole, exclusive, and totality covenants, and stipulations to which the parties agree. None of the 
terms, conditions, conversations, comments, representations, negotiations, statements, or other communications not specifically provided 
for herein shall be deemed to have survived execution.

Completeness of Agreement

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, Corporate Headquarters
7800 Trans Canada, Pointe-Claire, Québec, Canada, H9R 1C6
Tel: +1-514-694-3868 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, USA Office
3500 South Dupont Highway, Suite EP-101, Dover, DE 19901
Tel: +1 (704) 280-09271 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

QUOTE



Initial Here

Modification

With respect to all matters not governed by hereof, this Construction Agreement may not be modified except by separate written instrument 
executed by Owner and Contractor.

This Construction Agreement shall become effective, binding, and enforceable as against all parties upon the last date of execution by any 
such party.

Effective Date

Statement of Work Details

Project Information

Opportunity Name

Opening Date

SOW Type

Receive Shipment by Sub Contractor

Number of Mobilizations

Splashpad Information

Square Feet

Quantity of Embeds

Quantity of LEDs

Quantity of Activators

Quantity of Drains

Water Journey

System Information

WQMS Type

Electrical Input

Controller

# 1.5” Lines (Manifold)

# 2” Lines (Manifold)

# 4” Lines (Manifold)

Specified Distances

Splashpad Perimeter Specified distance

Distance to WMS The “Specified Distance” is the assumed distance between the Water 
Management System and the perimeter of the splashpad.  If the actual distance 
exceeds what is specified, additional material cost will be charged to Client.

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, Corporate Headquarters
7800 Trans Canada, Pointe-Claire, Québec, Canada, H9R 1C6
Tel: +1-514-694-3868 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, USA Office
3500 South Dupont Highway, Suite EP-101, Dover, DE 19901
Tel: +1 (704) 280-09271 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

QUOTE



Distance to Sewer The “Specified Distance” is the assumed distance between the sewer connection 
and the perimeter of the splashpad.  If the actual distance exceeds what is 
specified, additional material cost will be charged to Client.

Distance to Water Line The “Specified Distance” is the assumed distance between the Water supply line 
and the perimeter of the splashpad.  If the actual distance exceeds what is 
specified, additional material cost will be charged to Client.

Distance to Electrical Panel The “Specified Distance” is the assumed distance between the main electrical 
panel feeding the splashpad and the Vortex Control Panel.  If the actual distance 
exceeds what is specified, additional material cost will be charged to Client.  

Distance to Storm (if Rainwater 
Diverter included)

The “Specified Distance” is the assumed distance between the Rainwater Diverter 
and the storm drainage connection. If the actual distance exceeds what is 
specified, additional material cost will be charged to Client

Permits Included

Building Permit If Yes, Vortex is responsible for the Building Permit submittals and paying the associated fees.  Any 
changes to the design needed to obtain the permit will be charged to the customer.

Plumbing Permit If Yes, Vortex is responsible for the Plumbing Permit submittals and paying associated fees.  Any 
changes to the design needed to obtain the permit will be charged to the customer.

Sewer Permit If Yes, Vortex is responsible for the Sewer Permit submittals and paying the associated fees.  Any 
changes to the design needed to obtain the permit will be charged to the customer.

Electrical Permit If Yes, Vortex is responsible for the Electrical Permit submittals and paying the associated fees.  Any 
changes to the design needed to obtain the permit will be charged to the customer.

Health Permit If Yes, Vortex is responsible for the Health Department submittals and paying the associated fees.  Any 
changes to the design needed to obtain the permit will be charged to the customer.

Plumbing Information Included

Pressure Lines If Yes, Vortex is responsible for:
              • ll plumbing connections as necessary for the splashpad operation
              • Supply and install PVC SCH80 piping for all pressured lines from                               
                  manifold to features locations.
              • Supply and install all suction lines for WQMS system if applicable.
              • Complete pressure test of all pressured lines.

Non-Pressure Lines If yes, Vortex is responsible for supply and installation of drain lines for splashpad and drain pit as 
required

Backflow Preventer If yes, Vortex is responsible for supply and installation of Pressure regulatorbackflow preventer. supply 
and installation

Pressure Regulator If yes, Vortex is responsible for supply and installation of Ppressure regulator. supply and installation

Inspections Included

Pressure Test If yes, Vortex is responsible for coordinating with the relevant authorities for the inspections.

Bonding/Rebar If yes, Vortex is responsible for coordinating with the relevant authorities for the inspections.

Electrical If yes, Vortex is responsible for coordinating with the relevant authorities for the inspections.

Plumbing If yes, Vortex is responsible for coordinating with the relevant authorities for the inspections.

Compaction Test If yes, Vortex is responsible for coordinating with the relevant authorities for the inspections.

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, Corporate Headquarters
7800 Trans Canada, Pointe-Claire, Québec, Canada, H9R 1C6
Tel: +1-514-694-3868 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, USA Office
3500 South Dupont Highway, Suite EP-101, Dover, DE 19901
Tel: +1 (704) 280-09271 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

QUOTE



Sewer If yes, Vortex is responsible for coordinating with the relevant authorities for the inspections.

Concrete Scope Included

Form, Place, Finish If yes, Vortex is responsible for:
     • 6'' thick concrete slab for splashpad area with 4000 psi concrete mix, #3 reinforcing bars @            
12'' c/c both directions and thickened edges on concrete work as needed Form, place and                 
finish concrete slab of splashpad area as per final design
     • Form, place and finish all concrete slabs and collars necessary to support and secure                         
components as system requires (Vault, dome, debris trap, water containment system)
     • Expansion joints or saw cuts every 10' for the concrete slab
     • Established grade of 2% slope to center drain and 1-2% slope back to drain pit.
     • 6'' thick concrete slab for mechanical room with 4000 psi concrete mix, #3 reinforcing bars             
@ 12'' c/c both directions and thickened edges on concrete work as needed (If building                        
provided by Vortex)
     • Supply drain pit for WMS (Cabinet, Vault, Domepack)
     • Form and place drain pit for mechanical room (If building provided by Vortex) 
     • Medium broom finish on all exposed accessible concrete

Seat wall If yes, Vortex is responsible for:
• Form, place and finish concrete seat wall if applicable to the dimensions of the plans with 4000 psi 
concrete mix and #3 reinforcing bars @ 12'' c/c both directions

Painted Concrete If yes, Vortex is responsible for the supply and application of painted concrete.

Colored Concrete If yes, Vortex is responsible for the supply of colored concrete.  Customer to note that pricing is 
dependent on colors selected.  A change of color might result in additional charges to customer

Soft Surfacing If yes, Vortex is responsible for the supply and application of soft surfacing.

Excavation and Backfill Scope Included

Splashpad Area If yes, Vortex is responsible for: 
• Excavation of topsoil at a maximum of 6'' below grade, proof compact sub-grade for the splashpad 
area
• Backfill and compaction of all excavated areas
• Excavation and backfill of trenches for pipelines as required
• Excavation and backfill for water containment system and debris trap, as per design

Mechanical Room If yes, Vortex is responsible for excavation and proof-compact mechanical room area (If building 
provided by Vortex)

Tank and Debris Trap If yes, Vortex is responsible for excavation and backfill for water containment system and debris trap, 
as per design.

Haul-off Excavated Soil If yes, Vortex is responsible for hauling off unused excavated soil

Electrical Scope Included

Power to Vortex Panel If yes, Vortex is responsible for making final connections for electrical (Power supply brought to 
mechanical room or cabinet by owner).

Power to WQMS If yes, Vortex is responsible for making final connections for electrical (Power supply brought to 
mechanical room or cabinet by owner)

Bonding of Vortex Equipment If yes, Vortex is responsible for bonding of Supply and install bonding for all features and pump 
equipment.

Not Included Breakers needed in the electric panels are the responsibility of the Client

Vortex Equipment Installation Included

Anchors If yes, Vortex is responsible for the installation of all safeswap anchors, ground sprays and piping to 
final grade

Play Features •   If yes, Vortex is responsible for the iInstallation of features.

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, Corporate Headquarters
7800 Trans Canada, Pointe-Claire, Québec, Canada, H9R 1C6
Tel: +1-514-694-3868 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, USA Office
3500 South Dupont Highway, Suite EP-101, Dover, DE 19901
Tel: +1 (704) 280-09271 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

QUOTE



Water Journey If yes, Vortex is responsible for:
• Supply and place 3000 psi concrete mix with reinforcing bars 4 x #3 and #3 ties @ 12'' c/c for each 
pilaster (Ø18'' at specified depth)
• Supply and place all plumbing connection as necessary for the Water Journey operation
• Supply and place all electrical connections as necessary for Water Journey operation 
• Installation of the water journey and caulking of pre-cast slabs

Water System If yes, Vortex is responsible for:
• Installation and connection of the manifold in mechanical room or water distribution system
• Installation of WQMS/WDS system as required

Other Included Services

Trash Bin If yes, Vortex is responsible for providing trash bins the construction area.

Temporary Fence If yes, Vortex is responsible for supply and installation of temporary fences around the splashpad 
construction area. 

Supply Chemicals If yes, Vortex is responsible for the supply of necessary chemicals required for the startup and 
commissioning of the system.

Filter Sand If yes, Vortex is responsible for the supply of necessary filter sand for the startup and commissioning of 
the system 

Hose Bib If yes, Vortex is responsible for the provision and installation of the hose bib.

Secure Storage If yes, Vortex is responsible for the onsite secure storage of Vortex equipment.

Restroom If yes, Vortex is responsible for the provision of temporary on-site restrooms for the duration of the 
construction

Electrical Breakers If yes, Vortex is responsible for supply and installation of all electrical breakers need for Vortex 
equipment.  Client to ensure main electrical panel has capacity and space needed for the breakers.

Landscape Repairs If yes, Vortex is responsible for the repair Repair of any damages to the surrounding landscape

Install Supervision If yes, Vortex is responsible for supervising the installation.  Please review the Vortex Installation scope 
of work. 

Elevations Install If yes, Vortex is responsible for the installation of the elevations.

Waterslide Install If yes, Vortex is responsible for:
• Installation of steel columns, support arms and brackets.
• Installation of towers, stairs, and canopy.
• Installation of fiber glass slide

Special Notes and Requirements

Inclusions General  Items

• Participation to pre-construction, project updates and safety meetings as required (Via Teams/Zoom video conference calls or audio calls)
• The installation work includes a maximum of 2 on-site mobilizations for the completion of project   
• Unloading of Vortex equipment, provided only if the site is ready for installation when the products are shipped
• Site layout based on provided Datums for the splashpad area and mechanical room, tank and debris trap if applicable  
• Clean-up of the area occupied by Vortex during the construction

Customer’s Responsibility & Exclusions from Vortex’ Scope of Work 

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, Corporate Headquarters
7800 Trans Canada, Pointe-Claire, Québec, Canada, H9R 1C6
Tel: +1-514-694-3868 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, USA Office
3500 South Dupont Highway, Suite EP-101, Dover, DE 19901
Tel: +1 (704) 280-09271 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

QUOTE



• All necessary permits for the required work unless specified otherwise
• All inspection fees (Rebar, plumbing, electrical, sewer, compaction) unless specified otherwise
• Geotechnical soil reports and materials/compaction testing
• Customer needs to ensure that all footings shall rest on Homogeneous layer of undisturbed soil or engineered backfill with a minimum 
allowable bearing capacity of 100 KPA (2000 PSF) and maximum differential settlement of 19 mm (0.75”).  All organic material shall be removed. 
(applicable for Waterslide installation)
• Site survey and location of reference points (Datum) and elevation
• Grading plans, Erosion and control plans, Storm water management plans and landscaping plans
• Sewer or water tap fees, if required
• Water or electrical meter fees, if required
• Additional requirements set forth by the local health department and/or code enforcement not previously agreed upon as of the date of this 
estimate
• Additional electrical requirements if the existing power supply system is not sufficient to handle the electrical requirements
• Additional plumbing requirements if the existing water supply, waste water line and/or storm drain is not sufficient or within the parameters 
established
• Installation of anchors (applicable for Waterslide installation)
• Installation of Concrete Footings (applicable for Waterslide installation)
• Grouting under columns and steel structure. (applicable for Waterslide installation)
• Water supply piping, including brackets required to support water pipes to the structure. (applicable for Waterslide installation)
• Engineering & sizing of water recirculation system. (applicable for Waterslide installation)

• Laydown area and adequate access to work areas shall be provided to Vortex installers.
• Demolition of any existing concrete, pass, parking areas, features or structures
• Tracking pads and/or access roads to the construction site
• Removal and handling of contaminated/stained or unsuitable soil, or buried obstructions
• Final landscaping (grading, seeding, sod, shrubs, silt socks, etc.)
• Dry play park products purchase and installation
• Benches, tables and shades purchase and installation
• Drain pit form and place in customer supplied mechanical room

Other clauses that may incur additional expenses to be borne by the client:

• Any location or relocation of underground utilities and/or irrigation piping is the responsibility of the owner or its agent. If any utilities 
encountered and not identified by the local utility providers requires relocation or modification, it is the responsibility of the owner or its agent 
and no cost shall be borne by Vortex for such work.
• SUB-SURFACE CONDITIONS: Owner shall absorb all costs incurred from unknown conditions such as rock removal, poor digging conditions or 
pour soil bearing capacity, less than 3000 PSF or a water table higher than 10 ft below finished grade. If material is so large or so large or 
cumbersome that it cannot be removed with a mini excavator, then that part of excavation that requires other methods of removal or 
remediation such as, but not limited to, shoring, pneumatic jack hammer, backhoe, hydraulic rock breaker, or dynamite, will be billed on a time 
and material basis. 
• It is assumed that the site does not necessitate the use of a concrete pump truck.  If concrete pump truck is needed, Owner shall absorb all 
associated costs.
• Installation and construction to occur during normal daytime business hours, not including holidays. It is assumed that there is no restrictions 
on workdays and work hours.
• This contract includes a definite number of mobilizations (see inclusions), any mobilization beyond the contracted amount mentioned herein is 
subject to a $3,500.00 fee for each remobilization thereafter. If for any reason, external factors (other than weather), cause the suspension of 
work, Vortex USA Inc. may be entitled to additional time and cost associated with demobilization and remobilization, mileage, labor and travel 
time.
• Vortex USA Inc. maintains comprehensive insurance coverage.  This coverage is available upon written request.  Any insurance coverage 
required for specific projects above Cicero’s norm is not included in this proposal.
• A Performance and Payment Bond is not included in the price of this contract unless specifically included in the quote. This cost would be 
determined if bond is a requirement and price or design adjusted accordingly. Bond typically costs 5% of the total project.

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, Corporate Headquarters
7800 Trans Canada, Pointe-Claire, Québec, Canada, H9R 1C6
Tel: +1-514-694-3868 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, USA Office
3500 South Dupont Highway, Suite EP-101, Dover, DE 19901
Tel: +1 (704) 280-09271 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

QUOTE



Signature

Printed Name

Title

Date

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, Corporate Headquarters
7800 Trans Canada, Pointe-Claire, Québec, Canada, H9R 1C6
Tel: +1-514-694-3868 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

Vortex Aquatic Structures International, USA Office
3500 South Dupont Highway, Suite EP-101, Dover, DE 19901
Tel: +1 (704) 280-09271 or 1-877-586-7839 (USA & Canada)
Email: info@vortex-intl.com    Website: vortex-intl.com

QUOTE



  
 

Village of Decatur 
114 N Phelps Street 
Decatur, MI 49045 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Parks & Recreation Committee 
FROM:  Christopher Tapper, Village Manager 
DATE:   September 19, 2022  
REVIEWED BY: N/A  
 
SUBJECT: Request to adopt Committee By-Laws 
 
Action Requested: 
It is requested that the Parks & Recreation Committee adopt by-laws. 

Background: 
As a best practice of process and procedures boards, commissions and committees is to have 
adopted by-laws. The following attachment is an example of working by-laws for the Parks & 
Recreation Committee. 

  

Attachments: 
Parks & Recreation Committee - bylaws 



 
 
 
 

 
 

VILLAGE OF DECATUR 
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE RULES OF PROCEDURE (BYLAWS) 

 
ARTICLE I 

AUTHORITY 
1.1. Authority. These Rules of Procedure, otherwise known as the PARKS & RECREATION 
COMMITTEE Bylaws, are adopted by the Village of Decatur Parks and Recreation 
Committee(hereinafter referred to as the PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE) pursuant to 
Public Act 33 of 2008, as amended (the Michigan Planning Enabling Act), Public Act 110 of 
2006, as amended (the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act), the Village of Decatur Zoning 
Ordinance, as amended. 

ARTICLE II 
COMPOSITION AND OFFICERS 

2.1. Composition. The Decatur Village Council has been designated to serve as the PARKS & 
RECREATION COMMITTEE and to carry out all duties assigned to parks and recreation 
committee in the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act. Accordingly, the PARKS & RECREATION 
COMMITTEE shall consist of the 7 members appointed by the Village President sitting in an ex 
officio capacity. 
2.2. Officers 

a. The Chairperson of the PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE shall serve as 
the Chair of the PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE, approved by committee 
b. The Chairperson shall preside over all meetings and shall conduct all meetings in 
accordance with the rules provided herein. The Village Manager shall act in the capacity 
of the Chairperson in the absence of the Chairperson. 
 

ARTICLE III 
MEETING PROCEDURE 

3.1.Meetings. 
a. Meetings of the PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE shall be held at 
Village Hall at such times as shall be prescribed by the Chairperson. 
b. Notice of any meetings shall be given in accordance with the Open Meetings Act 
(Act No. 267 of the Public Acts of 1976). Notices shall be posted at the offices of the 
Village in the manner and time provided under that Act. Any changes in the date, time or 
location of the regular meetings shall be posted and noticed in the same manner as 
originally established.  
c. A quorum as defined by the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act shall consist of four 
of the seven total members. No business may be conducted, or official action taken 
except to adjourn the meeting if a quorum cannot be met. 



 
 
 
 

d. Except to the extent of any conflict with these rules or any applicable provision of 
the zoning ordinance or state statute, meetings shall be conducted in accordance with 
Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised (12th ed). 

3.2. Applicant Attendance and Participation. The applicant or his/her representative shall be 
present at the meeting when their application is heard and discussed. Failure of the applicant or 
representative to appear at the hearing will cause the PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE 
to postpone any action on the request until such time as the applicant or a representative is 
present. If the applicant or representative fails to make attendance for two consecutive hearings 
without notifying the PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE or Village staff, the application 
shall be dismissed. The Chairperson shall give the applicant/representative adequate time during 
the meeting to present his or her case to the PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE. Such 
time may exceed the 3-minute limitation provided for general public comment (as provided in 
section 3.3 below) and shall be determined based on the complexity of the case. 
3.3. Hearings.  

a. The Village shall provide for notification of public hearings in a local newspaper 
and by direct mailings as required under the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act. 
b. The Chairperson shall announce the matter of business to be considered and open 
the hearing on the matter for receipt of public comment on the subject, which shall be 
governed by the following rules: 

1. Only comments regarding the subject of the hearing will be accepted. 
2. All persons wishing to comment shall be given an opportunity to do so. 
3. Any person wishing to speak shall first be recognized by the PARKS & 
RECREATION COMMITTEE Chairperson. 
4. Speakers shall stand, if able, be formally recognized by the Chairperson, 
state their full name and address, and make comments directly to the Chairperson. 
Any questions shall also be directed to the Chairperson. 
5. Each speaker shall limit their comments to three (3) minutes. 
6. The Chairperson has the authority to order a person to conclude comments 
that are irrelevant, misleading, repetitious of comments made by other 
commenters, or in excess of their allotted time limits. 
7. Once all public comments have been received or if, at any time, during the 
hearing, a PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE members feels no other 
relevant or non-repetitious comments are being presented, a motion to close the 
public hearing may be made, or the Chairperson may advise that such a motion 
would be entertained. 

c. Once all public comments have been received or if, at any time, during the 
hearing, a PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE member feels no other relevant or 
non-repetitious comments are being presented, a motion to close the public hearing may 
be made, or the Chairperson may advise that such a motion would be entertained. 



 
 
 
 

 
 

d. During the hearing the Chairperson shall acknowledge any correspondence 
received. 

3.4. Motions.  Motions shall be restated by the Chairperson before a vote is taken. The name 
of the maker and supporters of the motions shall be recorded.  
3.5. Voting. An affirmative vote of four (4) PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE 
members shall be required to reverse an order, requirement, decision, or determination of the 
administrative official or body, to decide in favor of the applicant on a matter upon which the 
PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE is required to pass under the zoning ordinance, or to 
grant a variance (other than a use variance) from the zoning ordinance. Voting shall be ordinarily 
accomplished by voice vote; provided, that the roll call shall be required if requested by any 
PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE member or directed by the PARKS & RECREATION 
COMMITTEE Chairperson. A Use Variance may only be granted if authorized by the zoning 
ordinance and upon the affirmative vote of five (5) PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE 
members. 

3.6. Secretarial Duties. Secretarial duties for the PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE 
shall be performed by Village staff personnel as designated by the Village Manager. Such staff 
personnel shall be responsible for preparation of minutes, keeping of pertinent records, 
delivering communications, petitions, reports, other related items of business to the PARKS & 
RECREATION COMMITTEE, issuing notices of public hearings, and performing related 
administrative staff duties to assure efficient and informed PARKS & RECREATION 
COMMITTEE operations.  

ARTICLE IV 
DUTIES OF THE PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE 

4.1. Duties. The PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE shall perform all duties proscribed 
under the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act or the Village’s zoning ordinance. 

ARTICLE V 
OPEN MEETINGS AND FREEDOM OF INFORMATION COMPLIANCE 

5.1. Compliance with Acts.  
a. Meeting notices and in-meeting deliberations and decisions of the PARKS & 
RECREATION COMMITTEE are governed by the Michigan Open Meetings Act, Act 
267 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1976, as amended, MCL 15.261 et seq. 
b. Records, files, correspondence, and other materials pertaining to PARKS & 
RECREATION COMMITTEE agenda topics are available to the public for reading, 
copying, and other valid purposes as governed by the Michigan Freedom of Information 
Act, Act 442 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1976, as amended, MCL 15.231 et seq. 

ARTICLE VI 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

6.1.  Conflicts of Interest. 
a. For purposes of these bylaws, a conflict of interest is defined as, and a PARKS & 
RECREATION COMMITTEE member shall declare a conflict of interest and abstain 



 
 
 
 

from participating in PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE deliberations and voting 
on a request, when: 

1. An immediate family member is involved in any request for which the 
PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE is asked to make a decision. 
“Immediate family member” is defined as an individual's father, mother, son, 
daughter, brother, sister, and spouse and a relative of any degree residing in the 
same household as that individual. 
2. The PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE member has a business or 
financial interest in the property involved in the request or has a business or 
financial interest in the applicant's company, agency or association. 
3. The PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE member owns or has a 
financial interest in a property abutting the property involved in the request. For 
purposes of this section, a lot shall be considered with another lot if it shares a common 
property line or would share a common property line if not for an intervening public 
right-of-way. (In other words, a lot immediately across the street from another lot shall be 
considered abutting). 

b. The procedure for handling conflicts of interest shall be as follow:  
1. If a member has a conflict of interest, he or she shall disclose that interest 
during a PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE meeting prior to any 
discussion on the item to which it pertains, and shall then remove himself or 
herself from the hearing, discussions and decision-making process until the matter 
is over. Physical removal minimizes any public perception that the member with 
the conflict of interest is unduly influencing his or her fellow members by the 
member’s physical presence. 
2. If a member is aware of circumstances that a reasonable person may 
consider to create an appearance of a conflict of interest, he or she shall disclose 
that interest during a PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE meeting prior to 
any discussion on the item to which it pertains. The remaining members of the 
PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE shall then take a vote to determine 
whether or not to require the member to abstain from participating on that item. 

ARTICLE VII 
EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS 

7.1 Ex Parte Communications. 
a. The PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE must act as a board and not as 
individuals.  
b. Communication of any kind (other than at PARKS & RECREATION 
COMMITTEE meetings or hearings) (“Ex Parte Communications”) by members of the 
PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE with applicants, developers, applicant’s or 
developer’s representatives, or interested neighbors regarding a matter to come before the 
PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE is to be avoided, except for limited necessary 
contact during fact-finding site visits. 
c. Members may view sites only if they can do so without any unnecessary contact 



 
 
 
 

 
 

with the applicant, developer, applicant’s or developer’s representatives, or interested 
neighbors and for the specific purpose of gathering physical facts or data. 
d. If a member is contacted by an applicant, developer, or their representatives, or an 
interested neighbor, the member shall promptly inform that party that he or she will not 
discuss the matter or have any contact other than at a PARKS & RECREATION 
COMMITTEE hearing or meeting except for site visits. The member shall then 
immediately welcome the party to attend the PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE 
meetings to discuss their views, wishes, etc. or to deliver written comments to the Village 
Clerk for distribution to PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE members. 

ARTICLE VIII 
AMENDMENTS 

8.1 Amendments. The PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE may amend these bylaws 
by a majority vote of the members, provided that all members have received a copy of the 
proposed amendments at least 3 days prior to the meeting at which such amendments are to be 
considered. 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above Bylaws, as amended, were adopted on 

__________________, 2022. 
              
       ___________________, Chairperson 



  
 

Village of Decatur 
114 N Phelps Street 
Decatur, MI 49045 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Parks & Recreation Committee 
FROM:  Christopher Tapper, Village Manager 
DATE:   September 19, 2022  
REVIEWED BY: N/A  
 
SUBJECT: Request to set Parks & Recreation Committee Project List 
 
Action Requested: 
It is requested that the Parks & Recreation Committee approval priorities list. 

Background: 
At the August 2022 meeting, staff requested the Committee to review the priorities of the Parks & 
Recreation Committee. 

1. Red Woolfe Park 
2. Raider Romp 
3. Skate Park 
4. Tennis Courts 
5. Sidewalks, bike paths, trailways 
6. Other………  

Attachments: 
N/A 



  
 

Village of Decatur 
114 N Phelps Street 
Decatur, MI 49045 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Parks & Recreation Committee 
FROM:  Christopher Tapper, Village Manager 
DATE:   September 19, 2022  
REVIEWED BY: N/A  
 
SUBJECT: Request to review Parks & Recreation Department Budget 
 
Action Requested: 
It is requested that the Parks & Recreation Committee review the current FY 23 Budget. 

Background: 
As the Committee continues efforts to improve the areas Parks & Recreation of the Village of 
Decatur. The staff is recommending the Committee review the current fiscal year budget. 
Additionally, it is recommended that the Committee make suggestions to budget for the fiscal year 
24 to help assist the Village Council set the Committee’s budget. 

  

Attachments: 
Parks & Recreation Committee - budget 



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT 1/1Page:09/13/2022 02:08 PM
User: C.TAPPER
DB: Decatur

PERIOD ENDING 09/30/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 58.63

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 09/30/2022

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
09/30/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022-23

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures
Dept 751 - PARKS AND RECREATION

85.53 2,750.24 1,183.00 16,249.76 19,000.00 SALARIES-LEISURE SERVICES101-751-703.000
94.50 22.00 0.00 378.00 400.00 OVERTIME101-751-703.010
0.00 400.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 WORKMAN'S COMP.101-751-717.000

100.00 (2,732.04)340.06 2,732.04 0.00 HEALTH INSURANCE101-751-719.000
88.68 1,132.33 0.00 8,867.67 10,000.00 SUPPLIES & MAINTENANCE101-751-756.000
0.00 400.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 PRINTING/PUBLISHING101-751-901.000

34.16 658.43 36.98 341.57 1,000.00 ELECTRIC101-751-921.000
34.60 1,635.00 0.00 865.00 2,500.00 REPAIRS101-751-930.000
78.73 890.15 491.85 3,294.85 4,185.00 CONTRACTUAL101-751-931.000
80.72 2,621.43 1,122.07 10,978.57 13,600.00 EQUIP.RENTAL TRANSFER101-751-943.000
0.00 1,050.00 0.00 0.00 1,050.00 MULTI-PERIL INSURANCE101-751-963.000

100.00 (9,270.00)0.00 9,270.00 0.00 COMMUNITY PROJECTS101-751-985.000

100.84 (442.46)3,173.96 52,977.46 52,535.00 Total Dept 751 - PARKS AND RECREATION

100.84 (442.46)3,173.96 52,977.46 52,535.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.84 442.46 (3,173.96)(52,977.46)(52,535.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

100.84 (442.46)3,173.96 52,977.46 52,535.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND:

100.84 442.46 (3,173.96)(52,977.46)(52,535.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

100.84 (442.46)3,173.96 52,977.46 52,535.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS
100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS


	9-19-22 Agenda
	8-19-22minutes
	SplashPad-update
	PR-Bylaws
	Project List
	Budget

